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THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF MANITOBA
8:00 o'clock, Monday, April 9th, 1962.

MR. SPEAKER: Second reading of Bill No. 100, An Act to amend The Metropolitan
Winnipeg Act.

MR. ROBERTS: Mr. Speaker, I think it's unfortunate that the Honourable First Minis-
ter, who introduced what I believe will be a rather controversial amendment into the House just
before 5:30, isn't here at the present time to review the remarks that others might wish to
make on the amendment.

It's most fascinating to watch the Honourable the First Minister in action, particularly
when he has a problem. When things are going well he appears to have a great deal of confi-
dence; when he has a problem, one as controversial and hectic as the Metro problem appears
to be, he turns on his best oratory and sometimes doesn't make too good logic. He uses the
philosophy of WCSLH. He says things that we would otherwise perhaps not hear him say. For
instance, he is on the defensive -- he was this evening on the defensive. Because he spoke for
some 40 minutes on Metro; told us all the things we had heard before, and many things we had
never heard him say before. For instance he told us a lot of things about Metro we didn't ex-
pect to hear from him. He told us that they were going too fast. He told us that they were re-
fusing to co-operate with the municipalities. At the same time he congratulated the Chairman
of Metro. He seemed to be not sure whether he was for or against, or in between. And 1
suppose this is exactly what the amendment means. He is not sure whether he is for, against
or in between.

He said with problems such as Metro and Metropolitan Government, we learn as we go,
we solicit advice. Well, I ask him now, have we learned nothing in the 15 months of Metro
Government? I think the First Minister will agree -- if he's being honest with the House and
himself -- that the faults that he pointed out with Metro are faults which he created as the
First Minister of the province with his Act. I think that the faults that do exist, and some of
those which don't exist, but exist in people's minds with Metro, are faults that can be cured
-- but they can't be cured by sluffing them off onto another commission, or board, or group,
or somebody else to think it out for us. How many times have we heard this government,
members of the front bench, talk about the great leadership that we were now going to get in
Manitoba. How many times have we heard them tell us about the former government who
passed the buck and how this government would stand up, face things, straighten them out, do
what needs to be done. And what do they do the first time an opportunity to amend the Metro-
politan Government Act, the first time to, as the First Minister himself said, put Metro in
its proper perspective -- he passes the buck.

According to the First Minister he referred to quite a few of the problems which he
pointed out, at least in his view, that existed within Metro. First of all he pointed out that
the lack of co-operation between Metropolitan Government and the municipalities of the area.
In my opinion whatever lack of co-operation exists between these two groups is a natural lack
of co-operation, following on the type of legislation which was introduced where one body has
to raise its money through the facilities of the other. Because of the very Act which was pas-
sed by this government this lack of co-operation appears to exist.

The government referred, the First Minister referred to the too fast a take-over by the
Metropolitan Government of Greater Winnipeg. 1 say, "What rubbish' -- he can't accuse them
of too fast a take-over because the very things they have taken over are the things that he put
in the Act that they should take over; which he spoke to us saying they should take over;
which were the things that he said needed to be taken over, and this is why we're implementing
Metropolitan Government in Winnipeg. And then Metropolitan Government takes them over and
he says, ""Too fast a take-over, this is what's wrong with Metro -- too fast. ' And yet he was
the one who implemented this Act. He was the one who said, "These are the things that you,
as Metropolitan Government, must take over." And now he accuses them of taking over too
quickly. And he says part of the problem that exists with Metropolitan Government in Greater
Winnipeg is a natural problem of human nature and differences of personalities. But of course
-- we knew this all the time -- this always is the case. And so you set up your legislation so
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(Mr. Roberts, cont'd.) ..... that two levels of government don't have to operate in the same
field and conflict with one another. And this is why when they appear to be conflicting with one
another, you change your legislation so that they can both operate in the manner with which
they wish to operate and need to operate -- you don't set up another commission to investigate
and report back in a couple of years. .

This government created Metro, Mr. Speaker. It set it up with insufficient support.

Its weaknesses, the weakness in that legislation are obvious. So what do we hear from this
government that shows leadership; from this government that accepts all its responsibilities ?
We hear we're setting up another commission to investigate Metro -- we're passing the buck
again. I suggest that this government should show some strength; should look seriously at.
the legislation which covers Metro; should look seriously at the problems which Metro is un-
dergoing and should act upon these problems; should be prepared to deal with its first-born,
not to shunt it off; prepared to accept the responsibility of the level of government which it
created for a good purpose; accept that responsibility; make whatever changes in the Act are
necessary. Learn as we go along, as he said; solicit advice as he said; but do not procras-
tinate; do not pass the buck; do not shove it off onto another commission; accept that respon-
sibility and accept it now. Because this Metropolitan Government has been in operation only
15 months -- 15 months since it first took over its duties in the City of Greater Winnipeg. = And
during that 15 months already, at the end of that 15 months, this government is going to emas- L
culate it, or what? Who knows? But obviously it is not accepting the responsibility of the
level of government it created. So I say to the First Minister in these brief words -- ""Put
your house in order; accept the responsibility of the level of government which you created;
change the Act where necessary, but do not pass it off on another commission as you intend

to do with this." And I for one, Mr. Speaker, propose to vote against this bill when it comes
up. .
MR. E.I. DOW/(Turtle Mountain): Mr. Speaker, I beg to move, seconded by the Honour-
able Member for Gladstone, that the debate be adjourned.

MR. PAULLEY: Mr. Speaker, I wonder if the honourable gentleman would mind if we
delay, if the adjournment was delayed for a mament or two. I would like to speak if it's in or-
der, Mr. Speaker.

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Leader of the New Democratic Party.

MR. PAULLEY: Mr. Speaker, I did want to say a word or two in connection with this
Bill No. 100. I followed with a great deal of interest the remarks of our Premier this after-
noon, and I am sorry that he is not with us at the present time in order that he may hear what
1 hope might be some constructive criticism in respect of the situation of Metro and the area
municipalities. And also to hear some criticisms, which Ialso trust are constructive in res- ‘
pect of the position of the Government of Manitoba in-respect to Metro. |

-1 was somewhat amused to hear my honourable friend the Member for La Verendrye, /
who has led off for the Liberal Party in this debate, when he was criticizing at some length
that goverament because of the fact that they had introduced this legislation into this Assembly.
I thought, at the time that he was speaking, that he was one of those who had supported the
government, but I wasn't sure. However, I have since had an opportunity of reading the Jour-
nals of March 31st, 1960, and find that my honourable friend, the Member for La Verendrye,
was not one of those that opposed, but one of those that supported the bill for the introduction
of Metropolitan Government in the Greater Winnipeg area. Possibly my honourable friend has
forgotten that. )

MR. ROBERTS: Mr. Speaker, did I leave with you, Sir, if I could just clear this point.
Did I leave with you the impression that given the opportunity again, I would vote otherwise?

MR. PAULLEY: Mr. Speaker, may I answer my honourable friend this way, he left no
impressions with me at all, either for or against. The fact of the matter remains, however,
that he did vote for it, as I did, and as all but six out of 53 members present at the time of
the voting, voted for Metro Government.

Now when the Honourable the First Minister was speaking this afternoon he opened his
remarks in respect of Metro Government by saying this is something new and that it calls for
co-operation in order to function properly; that we should learn as we go; and that we should
keep an open mind. Well, Mr. Speaker, as far as I am concerned, all of the members of my
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(Mr. Paulley, cont'd.) ..... group, at the time of the introduction and the passing of the bill
for Metro, voted for it. But I want to say in all fairness at the time it was not a purely party
matter, as far as we were concerned, but we all came to the same conclusion in respect to
Metro. Ido not know because I have not caucused my members in respect of Metro today,
but as far as I am concerned, Metro is still a good thing for the Greater Winnipeg area and 1
leave my colleagues in the same position as they were two years ago, that if they think other-
wise, they're entitled to their opinions.

I agree with the Honourable the First Minister in some respects. He says that the three
leaders of the respective parties in the House at that time, on at least the two basic principles,
agreed, that is that we should have centralized planning and centralized services. I thinkI
should say in all fairness of the Honourable Member for Lakeside that at the final reading of
the bill he had reservations in respect of taking a referendum before the passage of the bill.

I think I would be correct in saying that in general that was his main reservation to the bill,
that the people in the Greater Winnipeg area should have had the opportunity of voting for this
new type of government or administration before the final passage of the Act. I respect my
honourable friend for Lakeside for that opinion and I realize that at the present time through-
out Metro there is considerable agitation for a referendum. It is my considered opinion, Mr.
Speaker, that a referendum at this time would be most disastrous. Why do I say that it would
be most disastrous at this time? I opposed the referendum when the bill was before us two
years ago because I did not think that the average or general citizen within the area would be
conversant enough with the proposition that was being placed before them to properly judge the
implications of Metro and, further to that, thatI thought that it was my responsibility, as a
member of this Legislature, to make the decision, and not to procrastinate on that decision.
And why do I say now, Mr. Speaker, that in my opinion it would be most unfortunate to have a
referendum today? In all due respect to many citizens who feel that there should be, I say,
Sir, that we should not because of the unsettled atmosphere, because of the charges which are
being made pro and con at the present time through the media of our press and meetings in
respect of the way in which Metro is operating. I am convinced in my own mind that the air
requires a clearing in respect of Metro. I'm prepared to accept the proposition of the govern-
ment for the advancement of a date of review from 1965 to this year, and in agreeing with that,
Mr. Speaker, I think it's most unfortunate, because I'm of the opinion that had different cir-
cumstances or actions prevailed the present confusion would not have existed. I know that
there are people who will argue with me when I say that in my opinion Metro did travel too
quickly. We did give them authority to take over jurisdictions of our major roads and many of
our others, of the functions that were formerly done by the individual municipalities. ButlI
suggest that we did not suggest to Metro at the time of the passing of the bill that they had to
take them over to the degree that they have at the present time. I'm sure in my own opinion
that had Metro travelled just a little bit slower, had they taken matters step by step that the
people in the areas would have appreciated far greater than they do -- or at least some of them
-~ the objectives and the work of Metro.

You know, Mr. Speaker, I sometimes wonder whether some of those who are at the pres-
ent time speaking loudest in opposition to Metro are disappointed because they didn't get the
"plum" of being Chairman of Metro. I sometimes wonder, Mr. Speaker -- and one shouild not,
I suppose, criticize the choice of the electorate in respect of any of their representatives --
but I sometimes wonder whether it wouldn't have been better and we wouldn't have had the
situation that we have today had all of those who sit on Metro today as councillors hadn't had
municipal experience before.

I noted the other day that a proposition is going to be laid before Metro Council by one
of the representatives of Metro to at this time call for a meeting between the area municipali-
ties and Metro to present a united front against the government. I think if just as much ener-
gies and activities had been used to attempt to get together with the local municipalities with
the purpose of making Metro work much more could have been achieved. The Honourable the
First Minister I think properly states that there has been less co-operation between Metro and
local government than we had hoped, and with that I agree. The First Minister says that we
need more public support for Metro and hence the purpose of the review.. Then he went on to
say that there needs to be a ventilation before an independent body. I think he is right. So he
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(Mr. Paulley, cont'd.) ..... tells us that he is going to set up a commission under The Evie.

dence Act, of qualified persons to hold public hearings, and I presume that following them, to N

make recommendations as to the necessity, or otherwise, of legislation to attempt to make
Metro do what we in this House had hoped that it would do. But, Mr. Speaker, I think the
Honourable the First Minister has overlooked the most important body of all when he did not
include the. provincial government in the jurisdictions that are coming under the review of this
commission. Iam convinced that this is a three-way deal; ' that we must have the united co-
operation of the government -- the creator of both Metro and the area mummpalmes in Greater
Winnipeg -- as well asthe area municipalities and Metro itself, right into the picture itself.

.The Premier inihis remarks this afternoon rejected any additional contributions from the pro-
vincial authority to Metro. I think, Mr. Speaker, in this he made a grave error. He has com-
pared the contribution of the provincial authority to the local area of Greater Winnipeg and to
Metro with other jurisdictions. I have not had time to study, since his remarks, the accuracy
or the base on which my honourable friend made his comparison, but I do know this, Mr.
Speaker, that one of the shortcomings in the Greater Winnipeg area in the Province of Manitoba,
be it in the local area or in the Metro area, is the shortcomings of financial aid of the provin-
cial authority to this area.

The First Minister, when he was speaking this afbernoon, if 1 remember correctly, said
something to the effect that the government would have to consider the contributions, province-
wide, and their relationship to the Greater Winnipeg area before additional contributions to
Metro or its area were forthcoming. I don't think that we require that. I think that it is very
obvious that the real property in the Greater Winnipegarea is paying substantially a larger pro-
portion to its services, particularly for schools, in the Greater Winnipeg area on a percentage
basis than anywhere else in the Province of Manitoba. My honourable friend said that the
government rejected the Blake-Goldenberg Report and the 100% taking over of the business tax
by Metro because this could not be considered in isolation -- meaning of course the business
tax. Possibly he is right. Now I know as far as my own City of Transcona is concerned, if I
may, Mr. Speaker, ‘just for a moment, in respect of business tax and business tax assessments,
have been greatly distrubed because of the assessment that Metro has placed on its business
taxes in Transcona, and I believe the same holds true in general with the municipality of St.
Vital. I think that possibly Metro has erred in arriving at a comparable business tax assess-
ment in some of the suburbs at least, with that within the City of Winnipeg itself, and this is
an area which I sincerely trust and hope that the commission will take under review. ButI
say again that if the First Minister wants -- and his government -- wants to assure that Metro
government will be placed on a firm basis, not only should he call together the area municipali-
ties and Metro government before a commission's set up by the government; but should give
assurances even before that that greater contributions will be forthcoming from the provincial
treasury. ' _

My honourable friend said that Metro is not entitled to special treatment compared with
others. Idon't think Metro or its area municipalities are asking for special treatment at all. .
‘I think that they are only asking for what is just and what is right. My honourable friend men-
tioned the fact of greater amounts of business assessment, property assessment and the likes
of that, in the Greater Winnipeg area. He did not mention however, Mr. Speaker, of the addi-
tional burdens within the area for such matters as social welfare and other costs that are being
borne. You may say to me that they receive the same percentage as they do in the other areas,
but when you take the total amounts of dollars and cents concerned, you arrive at a different
situation entirely. So I say, Mr. Speaker, thatI am going to support the second reading of
Bill No. 100. I trust and hope that when the bill is in committee we will hear at least a pre-

" view of the representations of the area municipality and the municipal authorities -- and the
Metro authorities,-as to what should be desired with this commission. - But I do sincerely and
earnestly suggest that in the recommendations to this commission that there be one that this
commission of experts, or qualified people, be also asked to review the position of the provin-
cial government in respect of Metro and the local area, because if this is not done, if this com-
mission is only going to concern itself between the local areas and Metro, then I suggest, Mr.
Speaker, it can only do a quarter of the job that is necessary, and I ask the government, who
is charged with the responsibility of giving direction to the commission, to make sure that
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(Mr. Paulley, cont'd.) ..... they, too, are under review in this very important matter, be-
cause metropolitan government in my opinion, Mr. Speaker, can be of great benefit to the
Greater Winnipeg area. No longer under a metropolitan government can we have slap-happy
extensions of our area municipalities; no longer would we have abbatoir buildings adjacent to
municipal boundaries like we formerly had; no longer have we under Metro area municipali-
ties locking desirable intercommunication roads between one another. These are the things
for which Metro was born and made Metro necessary. This government can do a great service
to Metro and all of the municipalities by getting behind it and by givmg it its whole support, in
particular its financial support.

MR. ORLIKOW: Mr. Speaker, I voted for the establishment of the Metropolitan Council.
I did so because it was obvious to me, and I think it was obvious to the majority of people in
the metropolitan area, that we could no longer continue providing the services which were so
necessary with 19 separate governments and that there had to be a great deal of co-ordination.
Now there are some people who thought that we would have been better off with an amalgamation
of all the municipalities rather< than the intermediate form of Metro. I'm inclined to think,
however, that this would have been politically impossible to accomplish, and so I think that

- when we voted for Metro, we voted for something which was a necessity, and I, for one, have
no regret. I want to say however, Mr, Speaker, that there is tremendous dissatisfaction with
Metro Government in the Greater Winnipeg area. There isn't a day goes by that members of
the Legislature aren't asked questions. Usually they're not even asked questions -- they're
told what's wrong with this terrible thing which was foisted upon them! I don't think that the
people realize quite what Metro's duties are; I don't think they understand what Metro's
powers are; Idon't think that they have thought through the division of responsibilities between
Metro and the area municipalities. I want to say, however, it's not surprising when you see
the kind of attacks which are made on Metro by municipal people and when you see this every
day of the week, for reasons which I leave to them to explain; when you see the Chairman of
Metro making a statement like he did last week, that if the Winnipeg council had wanted to
they could have cut the mill rate in the City of Winnipeg by four mills -- I think that the only
way that could have been done was by the City of Winnipeg cutting its services and I think it's
not the responsibility nor the right of the Chairman of the Metro council to tell the citizens of
Winnipeg what services they shall or shall not have, and I don't think he contributes anything
to harmonious relationship when he:vmakes that kind of statement, nor do I think that various
people in Winnipeg or the other municipalities who are continuously criticizing Metro, help
either. Nor, Mr. Speaker, do I think that the First Minister helped anything today when he
said he was disappointed that Metro had gone too fast. I want to suggest, Mr. Speaker, that
Metro has done no more and no less than they were permitted to do under the char ter, and the
charter was approved by this Legislature, and the charter of Metro was drafted on the front
benches across the way -- I presume by the First Minister more than by anybody else -- and
if the First Minister tells us today that he things they've moved too fast, I want to suggest,
Mr. Speaker, that he must have had in his mind a timetable along which he thought they should
have worked, and if he had that timetable it should have been put right into the Metro charter
and then Metro Council wouldn't have had to say ""Shall we do this in 1960? Shall we do this
in 19617 Shall we do something else in '62?" It should have been spelled out right in the pro-
visions of the charter; and for the First Minister to now say that they move too fast, I want to
say that it's either sour grapes or he's trying to get off the hook of his own responsibility, be-
cause he should have spelled it out if he thought that they should have done the job, the respon-
sibilities which they were given, not one year or in two years, but in the five years before the
review commission would need to have a look at what they're doing.

Now, Mr. Speaker, I want to mention just a few of the weird ideas about Metro which are
floating around the City of Winnipeg -- and I suppose the suburbs -- because I hear some of
them. I have been told, for example, that Metro councillors are getting salaries of $15, 000
or $18,000 a year. When you tell people that it's only one or two officials of Metro who are
getting that, and that their salaries are comparable and not really higher than salaries of the
same kind of officials having the same responsibilities working for the city, or working for
the province, they not only tell you that you're wrong, they tell you that you're lying. I've
had people tell me that every Metro councillor got a car free. That's because the inspectors
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(Mr. Otrlikow, cont'd.) ..... who are doing electrical inspections and so on have got cars, just
as the inspectors who work for the city have cars, but these are the kind of things which are
being said, which are floating around, and these are the kind of things which have made Metro
almost a swear word in the metropolitan area. I want to tell the First Minister if he doesn't
know it, that if there was a referendum held -- and I certainly don't think that we needed a re-
ferendum or that we need a referendum now -- but if there was a referendum held now, I want
to tell the First Minister that Metro would be defeated by mae of the largest majorities which
this area has ever seen. I still think it's a good idea, but these are the facts, and we have to
face up to what people are thinking. Anybody who doubts it just has to look at the vote for the
Metro by-election just held a few weeks ago. Sixteen percent of the people voted. - I want to
tell the First Minister, if he doesn't know it, that a large number of people who didn't vote,
didn't vote because they wanted to protest the way Metro has been operating. I'm'not saying
they're correct, Mr. Speaker, -- I think they're wrong. I think they don't understand the is-
sues, but this is the way people are feeling.

Now what is the real issue, Mr. Speaker? I think the real issue is the same issue which
has been with us for some years now. The real problem arises because of the rapid growth
of the urban population of Greater Winnipeg, which is only one example of the rapid growth
across Canada, and local governments, particularly urban local governments have been asked
-~ not asked, it's been demanded that they provide for the payment of the high cost of welfare
services, of education services, of protection services, largely on the basis of the only tax -
which they have which counts, which is the real estate tax. And this is becoming increasingly
difficult for local governments to do. Now, Mr. Speaker, I want to tell the members on the
other side that they ought to have a look at what happened just before the 1958 election, or what
happened in the 1958 election. Rightly or wrongly, the people of Greater Winnipeg decided that
the former government was anti-Greater Winnipeg and the results of the 1958 election were
that from Greater Winnipeg there is now only one representative of the Liberal Party. I want
to warn the members on the other side that they should learn a lesson from that. I want to
warn them that come the next election that there are five or six members on the other side
who will not be back here unless the people of Greater Winnipeg feel that they are getting a
fair deal from this government. And I can tell the members who they are: the Member from
Assiniboia, the Member from St. James, the Member from St. Vital, the Member from St.
Matthews, the Member from Wellington. Those are the ones who won't be back, because the
people of Greater Winnipeg are dissatisfied today about the deal which they are getting from
the provincial government just as they were in 1958. - -- (Interjection) -- Well, Fort Garry;
I'm not an expert on Fort Garry and maybe the Honourable Attorney-General has power which
the others don't have. Mr. Speaker, I've made my estimates and the honourable members
from the Liberal Party cdn make their own estimates. o

Mr. Speaker, it is all very well for the First Minister to bring the figures which he did
today and, incidentally, I wanted to say that when I have a chance to look at those figures in de~ R
tail, figures which we were not provided with, I intend to give them the closest scrutiny be- :
cause when I know that the City of Winnipeg, which is the largest component in the Greater
Winnipeg area, when the City of Winnipeg gets. for education only 19% of its total educational
costs from the provincial government, I must say I'm -- and I'm speaking very mildly --
sceptical about that 21% figure which the First Minister says the Greater Winnipeg area gets
from the provincial government for helping to run municipal costs. -- (Interjection) ~- Some-
body said about figures that figures don't lie but liars can figure; we'll have to wait till we see
them before we can arrive at any final conclusions. One thing that's obvious however, Mr.
Speaker, and that is that the local governments, whether it be Metropolitan Winnipeg, or the
local municipal councils, or the school districts are each year being asked to carry a much
larger amount of money and to raise more money in taxes to pay for the services which they
have to provide -- education, welfare, recreation, police protection, fire protection. The
costs of these are going up every year despite the promises, which in my opinion -- and I
think we can document them from the records -- were made by the government that these
costs would be held true to the government's program. These services, Mr. Speaker, are no
longer, if they ever were, really a local responsibility. After all, why should a local munjci~
pality have to pay for welfare? What can a local municipality do to assess the rate of
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(Mr. Orlikow, cont'd.) ..... unemployment? If in the City of West Kildonan the cost of wel-
fare this year is 300% higher than it was last year, does it have anything to do with the City of
West Kildonan? Or is it a result of the policies of the federal government which has helped to
create one of the largest pools of unemployment which this country has ever had? It was in~
teresting to hear the Honourable Member from Wellington say this afternoon -- I forget the
exact terms, but he talked about the fact that we were in some kind of economic recession. 1
wonder what Party he belongs to? The Prime Minister of Canada's telling us we never had it
so good. But this is a fact, and local governments are having to carry responsibilities which
are not theirs and about which they can do nothing. The cost of education continues to go up
from year to year, and this is something which the local governments can do practically noth-
ing about and which reflects themselves in the tax rate of the local residents because the taxes,
to a very large extent, come from the tax on real estate.

And so, Mr. Speaker, I want to say that while I'm going to vote for this bill which was
proposed today, thatI don't think that this commission will be able to accomplish very much.
And when the work is finished, and when it makes its report, the people of the metropolitan
area will still be faced with the same problems which they are faced with today because the
responsibility for this difficulty which we are in must rest on the government which has re-
fused -- and the First Minister made it very clear today that he still believes that the provin-
cial government is paying a fair share of the cost of local governments. I want to say, Mr.
Speaker, that the people of Greater Winnipeg do not expect any special favours. I didn't expect
to hear that from the First Minister. We used to hear that from the former government but I
thought that the First Minister knew better than that. The people of Greater Winnipeg don't
want any special favours. They never asked for any-special favours, but they do want the
same kind of consideration which other areas are getting. A simple mathematical formula
doesn't give the answer because the urban areas have costs which cannot be duplicated in any
other area. Old people tend to retire to the city; people who have very little money come to
the city, and it's not too long before they wind up on the welfare rolls. I don't complain about
that. Certainly they need to be kept and they need to be kept at a standard even better than we
have been keeping them. But to expect a local municipality, whether it be the local council or
the Metro Council, to be able to pay for this is expecting too much. So Mr. Speaker, I think
that the people of Greater Winnipeg are going to be disappointed by this bill, because I do not
believe that anything which this commission can do can change the basic problems which con-
front the people of Greater Winnipeg.

MR. CAMPBELL: Why are you going to vote for it then?

MR. ORLIKOW: Because I want to give the First Minister all the rope he needs to hang
himself, that's why. -- (Interjection) -- He's not; he's a pretty smart politician. Maybe
when this commission report comes through he'll think of some other excuse. Maybe he can
keep the excuses going until after 1963 when the next provincial election will probably be held.
=~ (Interjection) -- Oh, we're not swallowing anything and I can assure the Honourable Member
from Lakeside that we will be explaining to the people of Greater Winnipeg exactly what the
situation is just as we were doing it when he was in the benches across the way, and we'll keep
on doing it. Because, Mr. Speaker, the people of Greater Winnipeg are entitled to the same
consideration as the people in any other area. I was interested to hear the Honourable the
Minister of Education talk the other day about how some school districts get 70% or more of
their school costs from the provincial government. And, of course, he thinks it's quite pro-
per that that wealthy area of Winnipeg should only get 19 percent. I don't know which members
represent the wealthy areas of Greater Winnipeg. I know that my constituents are on the whole
pretty low-income people, and that when they have to pay the municipal taxes they feel it, and
they feel it a great deal. And I want to tell the First Minister again, and on this note I'm going
to close, Mr. Speaker, that unless there is a real change, a change which he has in announcing
the appointment of this commission warned that he is opposed to, that the people of Greater
Winnipeg are not going to accept this and that they're going to express their dissatisfaction in
a democratic way by defeating a very large number of government supporters from Greater
Winnipeg. '

MR. GEORGE WM. JOHNSON (Assiniboia): Mr. Speaker, since I am one of the ones
that the prophet from St. John's, the honourable prophet from St. John's, predicts as being
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(Mr. Johnson, (Assiniboia), cont'd.) ..... defeated, why, I think I should have a few words to
say. Youknow, he reminds me of the politician with two hats. One he throws into the ring,
which he just has receéntly, federal-wise, then the other he uses to talk through. All right.
Now, I think it's rather ridiculous that we have over here men who in all good faith stood on
their two feet and voted for these things, and now -- and also in the Act for to review Metro
within five years -- how It wonder what the Honourable Member for St. John's really means
when he criticizes the commission that's going to be formed and yet he says the people
wouldn't vote for it. Well I want to tell him something ~- that he hasn't got his ear as near to
the ground as what he thinks he has. -- (Interjection) -- Well that's for you. Because there
are many people today, there are many people today who are changing considerably with re-
gard to Metro; not fully satisfied with Metro but feeling this, that the formation of Metro, the -
justification of Metro at the time it was formed, was so justified by practially all the mayors,
the reeves and the aldermen of which I, at that time, had some little to do.

MR. ORLIKOW: What happened to Mayor Findlay? ’

MR. JOHNSON (Assiniboia): = You know what happened but it wasn't Metro. You may
think so but let me tell you something, it wasn't Metro, Sir, at all.” You may think so and-if
'it pleases you why you keep right on, but it wasn't Metro. And even today, Sir, even today"
the idea of men who supported Metro, who supported the bill, who now criticize the govern-
ment for moving up a few months the idea of reviewing, is really hard to understand. . Now
I'l] agree this. Ibelieve, and I've so stated in this House, that Metro has gone too far too
fast, and I think that it could apply to the good reasoning of any of the members.  They know
thatalso. There perhaps may be some justification for the members of Metro, but the actions
of some has justified the thinking of any reasonable man, that they have gone ahead a little too
fast and too far, and for one reason I'll say this to any of the men on this side who have had
the privilege through election of serving on councils. Now in any form of government that is
formed the Metro is formed senior to the municipal, and I believe that in the hearts of all of
us was the feeling that with the formation of Metro and the election of Metro, that those men,
knowing their powers -- we all knew their powers; you were all a party to giving them their
powers -- that they would at least step with caution, making sure that they, as they go along,
that they have the complete co-operation of the municipal councils with which they had to deal
with and from whom they were taking powers. Now, one of the great troubles with the muni-
cipal councils -- and I must say that I agree with them, that they were not given proper notice
in the taking over of the different things that Metro did take over -- the councillors and mayors
were not given sufficient time to adjust themselves. We may have had duplications -- its not
the fault of the mayors and the reeves or the councils because Metro did not, in their wisdom -
and their eagerness to,. in their idea or their thinking, justify their very existence, proceed ’
.in haste and by so.doing they -- which was to be expected, from any elected person, municipal
council, to antagonize these men, and through that and through the discussions that took place,
it was only natural then that a few or some of the ratepayers also took exceptmn But I'm
going to ........

MR. GUTTORMSON W111 the honourable gentleman permit a question? )

MR. JOHNSON (Assiniboia): After I'm finished, thank you. -- (Interjection) -- No, and
you know it's rather comical to-me to hear a man, honourable members, trying, endeavouring,
to now tear down that which they were part and parcel in building and which all credit should
go to the First Minister in advancing -- in advancing the time of the inspection of Metro up -~
who would say there is no necessity for it? I don't care whether it's politics or not, whatever
you're playing, but it's very necessary and it's necessary for the very good of Metro. Now no-
one will argue against the necessity of co-ordination of those services that are essential to the
Metro area and of particular -- and if necessary I could give some evidence of this but I re-
frain from it now -- of co-ordination in town planning and in the planning of our roads and.
other matters, and in this perhaps Metro went a little too fast also, but I make no appeal:in
this other than to that of common sense, because anyone that's had anything to do with munici-
pal affairs, particularly in the Metro area, knows that the co-ordination of planning and other
works is absolutely necessary for the future well-being of every Metro resident, and we're not
criticizing Metro -- we're criticizing to some extent the action of those who were given the res-
ponsibility and who, in our opinion, have proceeded a little too fast and by so doing have placed
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(Mr. Johnson (Assiniboia), cont'd.) ...... in jeopardy the very well-being of Metro, which we
absolutely must have; that is so necessary; so I think that honourable members who have had
anything to do with municipal affairs and whose responsibility it still is, even though they might
try to get away from it, whose responsibility it still is, to welcome, indeed be very thankful
that we are moving up this commission to take a look at Metro, because it wouldn't make any
difference of planning than any one of us did in effect, did ....... individually. In a small
business we might go out and lay plans but brother, are we going to wait two or three years
before we correct them or should we step in and try to correct them now? I think that's only
common sense. Surely -- surely we're not going to criticize the First Minister for in view of
justified eriticism on the part of ratepayers, '"So well, we'll have to wait five years, just let
them go five years'" -- why, I think he's to be given credit, and I'm quite sure by all those
thinking people he will be.

MR, GUTTORMSON: Mr. Speaker, will the member permit a question?

MR. JOHNSON (Assiniboia): Yes.

MR. GUTTORMSON: You stated in the course of the remarks that Metro went too far
too fast. Could you tell us in what services they went too far too fast?

MR. JOHNSON (Assiniboia): Why, I could say all of them. Yes, if you want to put it
that way, that's just what Ifinished saying, that instead of keeping pace and organizing the
government they were going to take over and say, "Now look, boys, in six months' time, or
one year's time, you adjust yourselves. You get adjusted, because we'll be taking over then."
The big trouble with Metro, they didn't give the municipalities any opportunity to adjust them-
selves to the change, and that's been one of the big troubles. Perhaps we may have had a little
over-lapping and whose fault would that be? Was it fair to go to the municipalities and say,
"In a matter of days we're taking over this, and we're taking over that." As a mayor or a
reeve or an alderman I would want time -- I would want notice. You make your adjustment,
and that's what I mean. After all, the world wasn't built in a day.

MR. SPEAKER: Are you ready for the question?

MR. DOW: I move, Mr. Speaker, seconded by the Honourable Member for Gladstone,
that the debate be adjourned.

Mr. Speaker presented the motion and after a voice vote declared the motion carried.

MR. CARROLL presented Bill No. 103, An Act to amend The Employment Standards
Act and to repeal Part O of The Shops Regulation Act, for second reading.

Mr. Speaker presented the motion.

MR, CARROLL: Mr. Speaker, this is one of a series of bills by which we tend to up-
grade, to bring up-to-date some of our labour legislation. This particular bill deals with two
main items -- safety in employment, wages, and also a short item dealing with notice provi-
sions and with the weekly day of rest. Now with respect to safety, we have in The Employ-
ment Standards Act now a section that deals with the storage, transportation and sale of flam-
mable fluids and explosives. We're now applying this section to the use of these fluids in in-
dustrial and commercial processes. We're prohibiting employment in areas which are dan-
gerous as a result of over-loading unless the employment is to remove the over-load -- re-
move the danger or to improve or to strengthen the structure in order to make it safe for em-
ployment. We also prohibit the installation of machinery if the operation of that machinery in
the place of employment is likely to affect the stability of the building itself. We're spelling
out and clarifying the responsibilities of the employer with respect to fire safety -- fire exits,
fire equipment and things of that kind. We're having the employer responsible for guarding
openings in floors and walls to make it safe for employees; making provisions for inspectors
to issue orders to eliminate hazardous health conditions. We're spelling out that buildings
either old, or buildings being renovated, or new buildings must conform to the standards es-
tablished by the Department.

With respect to notice provisions we're relieving both employees and employers of the
obligation with respect to notice during the first two weeks of employment. Now this is a pro-
vision which does cut both ways because an employee can take a job, find out that he doesn't
like it, decide to leave on short notice, not realizing that he has a responsibility to the em-
ployer to give him notice with respect to the termination of his employment, and this, of
course, will remove a lot of the areas of difficulty with respect to the administration of this
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(Mr. Carroll, cont'd.) ..... section.

We're also makmg the weekly day of rest apply to the whole of the province but in so do-
ing we're spelling out the conditions and the s1tuat10ns which might 3ust1fy exemptmns from
this provision of one day's rest in seven.

Now with respect to wages, the court at the present time can levy fines or penalties
against an employer who fails to pay minimum wages or overtime rates. 'We're now saying
that the court, in addition to levying a fine, may order that the employér pay the arrears that
are owing to the employee as well; spelling out that it's an offence to pay wages less than the
minimum required to be paid under the Act. We're also clarifying the situation and saying
that an employee can collect overtime rates through the courts. Another section deals with
money- which is collected by the Department for employees who subsequently move away and
who can't be found. We are saying in the statute that these monies, after six years, can be
transferred to the Provincial Treasurer, but the employee, if he shows up at any time in the
future, can lay claim to those monies and have them recovered. The final section deals with
an employer who fails to' pay minimim wages or who pays at a rate below that which is re-
quired under The Fair Wage Act. Such an employer, if he is convicted, then he may be re-
quired by the Minister of Labour to post a bond with the Provincial Treasurer of not over a
thousand dollars. Now the area in which we're having trouble here has to do largely with
small contractors, people who don't really have much in the way of permanent equipment --
they may only have a half-ton truck and be a plastering contractor-or some other small em-
ployer, without really much in the way of assets -~ who have persistently avoided paying
wages, been persistently taken into the courts and been fined. They've scraped up enough
money for the fine but don't seem to manage to ever get around to paying their employees.
This is the provision that we think will be of some assistance in keeping control of employers
who are persistently negligent in paying their employees. '

These are the general provisions. = We think that they will be helpful in the administra-
tion of the Act and will also provide additional protection to employees with respect to wages
and safe working conditions. -

MR. MOLGAT: Mr. Speaker, as the Minister's hesitation indicates, it's rather diffi-
cult to discuss the basic principle in this bill. It's a series of amendments, most of them not
directly related one to the other. At this time I would limit my own comments to the way in
which I think this bill should be handled. I hope thatboth employee and employer groups will
be advised of the time when the bill will appear in committee so that they can come forward
and make presentations. A number of changes here Will certainly affect both of them, and I
think it would be useful to the committee if we do give them a chance to come forward and
make representations to us so that we can then decide, in the light of their statements, what-
may be the best in the interests of the province as a whole. The changes here, it seems to
me, in many cases are certainly to be recommended, but there are some special circum-
stances in so many of these fields where the members of the House can't be sure of all the
details and I think this will be-very useful, so I commend this to the Mmlster so that there can
be good discussion at the committee stage.

MR, J. M. HAWRYLUK (Burrows): Mr. Speaker, I think one cannot help but commend
the government for making some improvements as far-as the changes that I think were long
needed, particularly in the field of some of the conditions that have existed under which some
of the employees have worked, but regarding the recommendations about some of the changes
that have to be made in some of the factories or buildings, how much latitude, how much time
or how many weeks of grace is given after a first inspection is made by your inspector in re-
gard to changes that have to be made for safety precautions in any factory or any building --
how much latitude of time is given?

MR. PAULLEY: Mr. Speaker, as far as we're concerned, we have no opposition to the
bill going to committee. I presume it will be the Industrial Relations Committee. We may
have some comment on details contained within the bill, but in general our observations indi-
cate that it is a step forward. I do wish the Minister would tell us which committee he intends
to have deal with this bill.

MR. CARROLL: If there are no further questions, Mr. Speaker, I would like to say
that insofar as it has been possible we have consulted with employees and employers that we
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(Mr. Carroll, cont'd.) ..... have felt might be directly interested in some of the provisions
of this bill, and I think that we can rest assured that there will be some considerable interest
among these groups in general, particularly with respect to other pieces of legislation, and I'm
quite sure they will have an opportunity when they are there for this other purpose to consider
these at the same time perhaps.

Now with respect to any changes which may be ordered by the department for safety
reasons, I would think that if it were an emergent situation where there was immediate danger,
they would order the employees out immediately and would not allow them to carry on any fur-
ther employment in there if there was immediate danger -- immediate hazard to the employees.
But I think, generally speaking, the department tries to be pretty fair to the employer and to
give him sufficient time, and to not make demands on him which are beyond his ability to cope
with. We try to be reasonable and make the changes slowly as he can do it within his means,
without trying to push him toohard. I think, generally speaking, the amendments here will
meet with the approval of both parties.

Mr. Speaker put the question and after a voice vote declared the motion carried.

MR. SPEAKER: Committee of Supply.

MR. ROBLIN: Mr. Speaker, I beg to move, seconded by the Honourable the Attorney-
General, that Mr. Speaker do now leave the Chair and the House resolve itself into a Commit-
tee to consider of the Supply to be granted to Her Majesty.

Mr. Speaker presented the motion and after a voice vote declared the motion carried and
the House resolved itself into & Committee to consider of the Supply to be granted to Her Majes-
ty, with the Honourable Member for St. Matthews in the Chair.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Department VI, Resolution 38 - 1, Administration, passed?

MR. PAULLEY: Mr. Chairman, I wonder if the Honourable the Attorney-General has
any more comments to make other than the short statement that he made the other night in
reply to some of the comments on this side. I would like to particularly hear from my honour-
able friend his reaction to the suggestion of the Honourable Member for St. John's in connec-
tion with the question of some of the branches in the field of correction coming under the de-
partment of the Minister of Welfare rather than that of the Attorney-General. Now I have fol-
lowed to a considerable degree a number of cases particularly dealing with the Indian and the
Metis, and it appears to me that there would be a — (Interjection) — no he's not, no he's not
-- (Interjection) -- Oh well, I'll go ahead anyway, but I wasn't doing what you thought I was
doing -- (Interjection) -~ oh no, I assure you that this matter is of personal concern to me
from observations and -- (Interjection) —- okay. Well it's a good way to start off this evening
anyway. Ihope we'll end up in the same spirit. But what I was going to say, Mr. Chairman,

1 have followed withconsiderable interesta number of cases dealing with the Indian and the
Metis in particular, where they are sentenced -~ and I presume properly so — by our courts
and our magistrates to institutes of penal reform, and they may be in there for a period of
‘time anywhere from a month to six months or possibly a year, and then at the expiration of
that time they simply go back to the same sort of family and living conditions from whence
they come. This is particularly.so in respect of young offenders, and my honourable friend
from St. John's the other day raised the question as to whether or not it might be better in
some phases of our corrections legislation, that rather than the young offenders, the juveniles,
be handled under the Department of the Attorney-General, it might be better that these be un-
der the general purview of the Minister of Welfare. Now I cite as illustration the many of the
Indian and Metis cases that I have followed — I think my honourable colleague had other young
offenders in mind as well -- and I would like to hear from the Honourable the Attorney-General
whether or not he has any observations to make in respect of this aspect of correctional treat-
ment.

MR. LYON: Mr. Chairman, I'm not one who is known, either in this House or outside
of the House, for wanting to take on or to maintain or to aggrandize unto myself new areas of
work, and so from a personal standpoint I could hardly be heard to object to any suggestion
that would relieve me of certain of the responsibilities that I have at the present time. But
dealing with it on a factual basis, I think there is -- one must admit that there is some merit
to the idea when one looks at other jurisdictions, because of course, in other jurisdictions --
in some of them at least -- the responsibility for corrections has, in recent years, been
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(Mr. Lyon, cont'd.) ..... transferred from the Department of the Attorney-General either to - .

a separate Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation or to the Department -of Welfare or
its counterpart in the province referred to. This is not to suggest for a moment that there is
any philosophical block in the Attorney-General's Department in dealing with these matters,
but I think that one must admit that in the over-all concept, the over-all modern day concept
-- let me put it that way -- of corrections, that we really, in essence, are dealing with a wel-
fare and a rehabilitation program, and to the extent that that is the case, then I can certainly
see room for arguing the point that is made by the Honourable Member for St. John's without
necessarily admitting that one department could handle a branch such as this any better than
another department, but from the standpoint of consolidating the responsibilities for rehabili-
tation and welfare, Ithink a case might be made out along those lines. :

Mr. Chairman, while I'm on my feet, I had intended to speak first when you called the
item tonight and my only purpose in rising at this present time is to call to the attention of the
House, and I would hope to the attention of the press gallery, a report which appeared in The
Winnipeg Tribune of Saturday, April 7, on the city f)age under the heading, "Province Wants
Jail for Youths. May cut juvenile age to 16." And the first paragraph of that report read. as
follows: "Attorney-General Sterling Lyon told the Manitoba Legislature,- Friday, the province
had concluded talks with the federal government last week about construction here of a jail for
young offenders." And I merely wanted to set the record straight in that regard, Mr. Chair-
man, and to assure the House, as I'm sure it was clear on Fridaynight when I spoke, that the
discussions with the federal government are merely under way. They are a long way from
being concluded. I only wish that they were concluded and that I could give this undertaking
to the House; and while I appreciate the optimism of the report that was contained in the Win-
nipeg Tribune, I would hope that those within my hearing would perhaps amend the statement
that was contained in the Saturday edition of the Tribune to conform with what was said on Fri-
day evening because, in fact, the negotiations are still proceeding and have not been concluded
by any means at all. If and when they are concluded and I hope concluded successfully, then

"I'll be more than happy to announce that fact to the House.

MR. REID: Mr. Chairman, I believe more citizens become involved with the violation
of The Highway Traffic Act than any other aspect of the law, and last session when I brought
numerous subjects up the Attorney-General thought they were of a private nature. Well pos-
sibly yes, Sir, but I believe the committee should hear how so~called justice is dispensed by
police departments throughout Manitoba, and the case I have before me, Sir, is of an ordinary
citizen being apprehended for excessive speeding on the highway. When the citizen stopped, in
this case, and the cruiser flagged him over, he got out and walked over to the policeman's car.
The first thing the policeman said to him, he said, '""You're under the influence of liquor, ' and
this gentleman said, "Well, no, I don't think so." He denied it -- well, naturally you know --

and he says to him -~ "Well, " -~ actually about that time, it was about 9:00 o'clock at night;
it was dusk; he said, ""Well, walk over to the other side of the car. I want to see your regis-
tration and this and that," he says. "Get in the car and sit down." So this gentleman got in

the car and sat down, and as soon as he sat in the car the policeman says, 'I thoroughly detect
a strong odor of liquor." Well, the gentleman says, "It's not on me. It's not in me." He
says, "If there's any odor of liquor it must be in the police car, ' and the policeman says, '"No
it isn't." So then, Mr. Chairman, this gentleman, he demanded of the policeman he wanted to
be driven to the police station. He says, "I want to get a doctor to test me.'" He says, "I want
to get a lawyer to witness that I've been tested -- that I'm not under the influence of liquor."
Well immediately that policeman seen he couldn't bluff this fellow he changed his story and re-
taliated, Mr. Chairman, by asking this gentleman personal questions. First he asked him if
he had any criminal record and had he had any charges against him. Well, Mr. Chairman, if
any gentleman had any charges on a driver's licence all he had to do was flip it over and he
could see it. ‘

A MEMBER: Maybe he couldn't see the other side.

MR. REID: Well possibly he couldn't see the other side. All these accusations, Mr.
Chairman, before he finally wrote the ticket out, and all I can say, Sir, it's very fortunate
this gentleman wasn't of a timid nature and also that he hadn't had one drink that day because
goodness knows what charges that policeman would have thrown against him. --(Interjection) --
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(Mr. Reid, cont'd.) ..... Could be, Bert -~ could be. And I'm positive, Sir, that no avérage
citizen just for the violation of The Highway Traffic Act should be subjected to such humiliation
. and insults from any police officer, and I'll be glad to give the Attorney-General a signed
statement by this gentleman if he desires it. I also have, Sir, a piece of good advice given by
an American judge in his traffic court if any citizen in Manitoba should be caught with similar
circumstances. This is the Winnipeg Tribune, January 22nd, and the headline says, "If in
Doubt Don't Get Out, " and by golly that's good information. Never get out and walk over to

the cruiser car -- sit there 'till he comes over to you. And here's what this gentleman says,
"A man's car is his castle, Judge Joseph Marchetti ruled Friday. A policeman suspecting a
drunken motorist can't order a man to leave his car simply because a man's face is flushed or
because he's driving somewhat erratically, the Judge held. The Judge, it turned out, had been
through the mill himself. Marchetti dismissed the drunken charge against Walter J. Vandepas.
Motorcycle officer Eugene Long said he suspected Vandepas was drunk because the motorist
weaved over the double line and hesitated ten seconds at a green traffic light. Marchetti ruled
that was not sufficient probable cause to order Vandepas out of his car.  He held that Long had
violated a constitutional safeguard against illegal search and seizure. Off the bench Marchetti
recalled that several years ago officer Long stopped a motorist, demanded that he get out of
his car, yanked open the door when the driver asked why. The Judge said Long was pretty
rough and the motorist feared he might be torn apart if he didn't obey, so he did. The motor-
ist was Judge Marehetti. He said Long smelled his breath and without apology allowed him to
proceed." So, Mr. Chairman, that's a very good piece of advice for any motorist being
stopped in Manitoba or any Greater Winnipeg area -- if you're in doubt don't get out.

A MEMBER: Don'ttry it, that's all. ’

MR. REID: And I have the information here -- the Attorney-General, I'll give it to
him -- a signed statement by the gentleman, where it occurred, what police department --
everything. :

Another very important point, Mr. Chairman, is that which involves thousands of citi-
zens -- that's minor accidents and who pays for them after. I have here, Sir, an example of
a motorist parking his car on the street and a truck driver backing into it. Fortunately it was
observed by a witness who stayed on the scene and gave the citizen all the information. The
truck had just moved down the street so he went over and spoke to the truck driver and the
truck driver said, "Don't bother me — phone your insurance company.' The motorist sus-
pected that the driver was under the influence, which was his privilege. He immediately
phoned the police and they were slow in getting there, but the citizen waited there, and the
police arrived and he gave them the number, description of the truck. This truck later, Sir,
was located in front of the truck driver's residence and impounded and locked up for reasons
unknown to the citizen at that time, but later the citizen was subpoenaed to testify against this
driver in court where he learned that this driver in particular was driving under suspension,
yet when it came to court he was charged with driving with suspension, yet the magistrate dis-
missed damages charges against this citizen. Well, Sir, if we call this justice when a citizen
can drive around in Manitoba on a suspended licence and drive into any citizen's car, then they
get into court and this fellow is subpoenaed to appear in court to testify as witness and the
judge dismissed the case. I don't think this is justice either, Sir, and I'll give the Minister
this case also, and I have the subpoena here that he can testify and check on the court -- it's
right here. Andone of the reasons, Sir, I questioned this gentleman -- I said, "Well when
they asked you to appear in court," I says, "why didn't you get a lawyer?" He says, "Well,

I just thought I was just going there as a witness,' he says. "Why should I hire a lawyer to

go and just testify this fellow backed in the car." But this other gentleman, Sir, he's got a
list of suspensions listing back from 1959 of suspended driving licence about that long. He was
a smart operator -- he hires a lawyer, and the lawyer got him off from these charges of back-
ing into the gentleman's car, and he don't have to pay for it.

MR. HILLHOUSE: Who was the lawyer?

MR. REID: Pardon? Well, I mean it's a credit to the legal profession -- they're a
smart profession -~ but it's just saying the ordinary citizen can't always afford to hire a
lawyer and he doesn't know -- in fact this gentleman, he's a newcomer to this country, this
gentleman, and it's the first time he ever appeared in court, and he didn't even know what was
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(Mr. Reid, cont'd) .... happening until he just heard the case was dismissed against his car
and he says, "Now I've got to pay for my car myself,"

I have here a press release, Sir. I'think it would be quite mterestmg to the comm1ttee. :
It's a quotation ...... by the Attorney-General. The Tribune, March, '62. The headline,
"Lyon Suggests Civil Suit Changes. A suggestion that procedures in civil actions before the
court should be simplified to attract more lawyers to the court-room was made by Attorney
Sterling Lyon Saturday. Addressing a central judicial district of the Manitoba Bar Association
annual meeting at Portage la Prairie, he said the present mechanics of bringing a civil action
before the court was cumbersome.' And here's the part I think, Mr. Chairman, will interest
the motoring public. "He said he also thought the profession would be better off it there was
a change involving motor vehicle damage -action; Mr. Lyon emphasized he would not suggest- -
that court - and the legal profession were not ...... on a judicial process as it was at present,
but he did feel that the public looked to the profession to make those changes which were nec-
essary to bring things into line with modern thinking. In this way the profession could best
serve our way of life and preserve the rule of the ldw,he said." Well, Sir, I think that's pos-
sibly right, because in the average case of a small accident the citizen does not wish to hire
a lawyer because usually the lawyer's fee exceeds the amount of the dam‘ages. True, he may

‘win the case, but in the long run it will cost him money.

Another point I would like to brmg up here, Sir, isthat coroners -~ whlch is the respon-
sibility of the Attorney-General -- are directly responsible for appointing coroners juries,
which they usually do through the chief police officer in the area in which the accident or so )
forth occurred, but I believe, Sir, that especially in industrial accidents, that at least one mem-=
ber of the coroner's jury should be familiar, or work in the type of industry that the accident
occurred, because I'm sure then, Sir, we'd get more authentic reports on coroner's juries'
recommendations on how to avert these fatal accidents, and I suggest to try this practice, Sir,
because even if we averted one accidental death a year it would be a worthwhile practice.

I have another point here, Sir. I understand the Law Society is building up a fund to pro-
tect the public from the legal profession. And here's an article in the Winnipeg Tribune by Les
Rutherford, Tribune staff writer: "Lawyers build up $100,000 fund. The Law Society of Mani-
toba will have a fund in excess of $100,000 to cope with any possible defalcation by its members,
the Society's secretary, Harold Stubbs said Wednesday. In addition, the Society has engaged
the services of a full-time auditor inspector to regularly inspect and check the trust accounts
of all lawyers. in the province. Mr. Stubbs said these steps have been taken following the pros-
ecution of a lawyer in September 1960 when some 80 charges were laid involving amounts in

" excess of $100,000.00. Following the prosecution and the sentence of the lawyer, Mr. Stubbs

said, the Society was faced with claims from members of the public who had given money into
the hands of lawyers. To settle these claims and to build up a reimbursement fund, = as it's
called, all practicing lawyers in the province have to pay $100.00 in addition to their fee for
practicing in 1961; for '62 the Society has made a lévy of $25.00 on each lawyer, and it is hoped
that providing there are no claims in 1963 that it will be further reduced. Mr. Stubbs pointed
out that in addition every lawyer applying for his annual certificate to practice had to complete
a form prepared by an authorized agent stating his trust account was in proper order. The
number of minor complaints were also looked into by the Society during the year. Mr. Stubbs
said the fees had been quickly disposed of without any formal. investigation being necessary.
Well, Sir, it shows this fund being built up to protect the public against the legal profession
but I think it's time the legal profession did its share to protect the public. And we have here,
Sir, on March 12th --I guess all you gentlemen have seen it -- "Free legal aid gateway to
prison, says ex-convict.' Well how true thatis, Sir, I don't know, but in reading an earlier

_report, last February 1962, I came acxzcss one which indicates what the Law Society intends
- to do for the public. It's February 12th, Mr. Chairman, of the Tribune, '"Law Society Seeks

More Help.'" The headline, "Only Six Lawyers Aid Indigents. The Law Society of Manitoba is
taking steps to inject new enthusiasm for criminal indigent cases inthe ranks of the province's
650 lawyers. A new system of checking indigency of persons asking for free legal aid and a
new method of distributing the case of lawyers are two of the steps. The third was taken this
week-end when a letter was circulated to all members of the Society asking for volunteers to
rebuild their depleted roster of the lawyers willing to give free legal aid to indigents charged
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(Mr. Reid, cont'd) ........ with indictable offences. Over 250 names are on the roster.
However, the vast majority of indigent aid cases are being handled by about six lawyers, and
most of these by one man." So it shows you, Sir, that the law profession is not doing much
to belp the average citizen, especially citizens that can't afford to help themselves. And]I
hope that after I've read this thing and I guess it's gone to every legal man in the Province of
Manitoba, that the lawyers will answer this volunteer plea and volunteer to see that justice is
upheld wherever it's possible and had not been done before, Sir, and also to maintain our
sense of justice for all citizens concerned.

Well, Mr. Chairman, in concluding, I'd like to make these three points. The Minister's
department should issue instructions to all police departments on proper behaviour and con-
duct in their line of duty, especially in violations of highway and traffic acts. It's different
when it comes to a criminal case, the criminal code, and there's different methods and modes
of handling it. But ordinary citizens just by a violation of the Highway Act they should not be
subjected to any criminal code or offence from the police department. The second, Sir, all
judges and magistrates in Manitoba should be empowered to award damages up to $3100.00 es~:
pecially in impaired and drunken driving charges, and that Sir, if a fellow appears before a
judge or a magistrate on a drunken driving charge, the magistrate should ascertain if there's
been any damages done, and up to $100.00, I think our judge should be empowered to say, "Well
here, you have to pay this and that," it would protect the ordinary citizen and save a lot of
inconvenience for the average citizen who has to hire a lawyer to fight the case, like the indi-
viduals -~ oh yes, I see a gentleman over there shaking his head -- this individual I'm speaking
about he's paid a bill of $50.00 out of his own pocket because it costs him more than $50.00 to
hire a lawyer. Now when that judge -- this man that was on the suspended driving charges,
he was charged on that again, but he suspended him on the other charges. The judge in his
wisdom should ascertain that the man --the circumstances, and if he’s had a list of drivings
against him, he should have empowered and given damages to this gentleman. And last but not
least, Mr. Chairman, the legal profession should always be assured that they have proficient
student lawyers and:the Bar Association should try and adjust their fees in proportion to the
amount involved in cases that the public would avail themselves more readily of their services.

MR. M. GRAY (Inkster): Mr. Chairman, my few remarks will be on the Headingley gaol
only. I have no intention of going over all the estimates. I think, perhaps, if the honourable
members would do the same thing and try to divide the criticism which is necessary, I think
perhaps the Attorney-General even at $1.00 a year would probably digest it better.

My worry, and it has been all the time, is that section of the inmates in the Headingley
gaol. My first worry is the big business they do and the large crowd they get. I think it's the
first time that I noticed in the last report of the gaol that in the winter the average faopulation
was 500, and in the summer 450. I think that a remedy like better living conditions, employ-
ment, health protection, would probably cut down the population considerably. What worries
me more is, first of all, there's about 160 inmates during the year have been sent to gaol for
seven days, likely for driving wrong, I don't know, but for seven days. And this seven days'’
gaol kills and takes away every bit of prospect from them to rehabilitate themselves and get
employment. I've already mentioned that most of the applications for employment accept labour
work which is not available now due to the machinery, automation and so on, and they're stopped
from making a livelihood for the sake of seven days. I was just wondering whether the Honour-
able the Attorney-General can perhaps discuss it with judiciaries, magistrates of experience,
to find out whether there could be a way other than sending them to gaol, period; never mind
what it's for but sending them to gaol and ruining their entire future life, that's what my worry
is. And this probably is the reason why we have so many repeaters, so many going back. What
can they do? Some of them are sent back three days after they are released. They can't get a
job; they cannot go on the street and beg for a dime. And I don't know whether they could get
unemployment relief or not but this is extremely, in my opinion, tragic -- not only serious but
a tragic matter.

Another point the report shows, which we should take note of, careful note, and this
is, that 1,900 guests at Headingley Gaol are under 30 years of age, under 30 years of age, which,
in my opinion, is a tragedy. Here is 1, 900 out of 4,000, almost 40% - -~ 45% -- at the age
between 17 and 30, right in the prime of life. And many of them are married, and while they're
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(Mr. Gray, cont'd) ......... young their families are ruined, the man himself his life is.
broken up forever, and many of them move out from the neighbourhood -- not a very fine thing
when the children hear the other children say that your father is in gaol -- not a very pleasant
thing., And I think the number is much, much too large for being there under age. I'm not
defending crime, but I'm trying to find out how to prevent it, how to prevent crime and have

the punishment meet the crime. Because some people may steal $300,000 and some people
may steal a couple of apples. and still get the same sentence, otherwise so many young people
who realize the tragedy would not have committed the offence which they have..Then we have,
the half of them in gaol now are common labourers, common labourers, which indicates that --
althoughthey'renottobe forgivenfor a crime =-is committedbyunemployed and hardshipandmost
of the offences arenottoo serious,butsome of them are compelled --althoughI don't want to justify. .
their crime--but these are afew items which we readinthe report of the gaol whichIthink shouldbe
carefully considered,remedied wherever it is possible,and even achange of tactics,a change of
rules, carry on the Attorney~General's work to be combined with the Minister of Health or the
Minister of Education, the Minister of Welfare, and if you could save one person--to send one
person less to gaol and save one family --as the Bible says, saving one human being is the same
as saving a nation.

For the moment, Mr. Chairman, this is all I'm goingto say. I'll probably ask a few
questions under the different items of the estimates, but the Headingley Gaol problem. worries
me every time -- worries me, ‘and I look forward to seeing the report because I try to find
improvement, and outside of some physical improvement in the Headingley Gaol, I don't think
there is anything being done more than the department has done a year ago; two years ago or
five years ago, at least if there is, I cannot find it. At the end I want to commend the Superin-
tendent for his detailed statement which gave us an opportunity to peruse it and study it and
above all worry about it, because they're all humanbeings and we've got to protect. It's our
duty to protect the other fellow who is unfortunate. As far as the Attorney General personally
is concerned, if the House decides to give you-one dollar, I'll endorse a note for you at a bank
for ten dollars.

MR. JOHN P. TANCHAK (Emerson) Mr. Chairman, as usual, the more vociferous
members of this House have had their say, and I must say thatI have profited by the answers
that they received. Now I had the privilege of sitting in this House in 1958 early in the spring
with the government. I was sitting on the opposite side. Now I'm sitting on this side and I have
the privilege of sitting with the boys who are criticizing. I heard the former Attorney General
- being severly criticized; now I hear the present Attorney General being criticized by my col-
leagues and the rest of the members on this side, and I know the Attorney General has a difficult
department at present as it- was difficult before. The former Attorney General, in the opinion
of some of the members who are presently sitting across the way, intheir opinion, judging from what
I have heard when they criticized, didn't do justice to this department. Now the present Attor-
ney General, when he took office, he seemed to regret that the office was left in such a mess,
and he was going to do wonders; he was going to soar into heights before unexplored, but in
1962, sitting here and listening, I have to say that his ideas seem to have fizzled out on the laun-
ching pad. All he can give us now is excuses. Not enough money; not enough personnel. But
for us sitting here, for me especially, it seems very difficult to justify this, that there was
progress made, when we notice an ever increasing demand for more gaols, more penal institu-
tions, and at the same time we know that -- we can see that the criminal element in this prov-
ince is not decreasing any. A new building was built for the girls -- and the Minister likes to
take credit for what he did in this department, and I think that he should also assume responsi-
bility for the loss of one life of the girls, inmate of this institution. It was quite disturbing to
me, at a small garage, this last Saturday -- one of the men who were in that garage, come out
with a statement like this -- and that's really why I got up to say a few words today. He says
to me: "You fellows are crying about a girl who was drowned, an inmate of this home, and I
say that the Minister should have drowned all those useless girls. He would have done better
if he'd drowned them all." I shuddered to hear this and I'm sure the Honourable Minister, if
he did, he'd shudder too. We like to talk about caring for our cripples, caring for the mentally
disturbed, caring for our old age, and we should; and I don't think that these girls should be
spurned. I think they should be pitied because they are sick. Now, come back to this, the
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(Mr. Tanchak, cont'd)..... Honourable Member for Ethelbert accused the Minister of irres-
ponsibility in this matter -- this girl that was drowned -- and I was really surprised when I
heard the Attorney General answer this. He seemed to have brushed it away so lightly. There
seems to have been a supervisor in the building. Maybe there was, and I'm not blaming the
supervisor. Maybe there's not enough of them. I wasn't there. But just to brush it aside and
say that there was a supervisor there, I do not think is enough. No doubt there was one. But
in my opinion, I think there was negligence there. According to the reports, it seems to me
that one of the girls came and reported the accident before it was discovered. The Minister
is responsible for his department and should take that responsibility. The girl was drowned .
Supervision must have been very lax there, and I would like to state that this is akin to crimin-
al negligence and the Minister is responsible for this department, and he shouldnot have
brushed it away as lightly as he did. That's what was disturbing to me. .

cossssessss continued on next page.
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MR. CHAIRMAN: Resolution 38 -- passed. Resolution 39, (2). Land Titles Offices.

.MR. GUTTORMSON: Mr. Chairman, a very disturbing situation came to light last Janu-
ary when it was revealed that the Wellington Progressive Conservative Association used the
name of a worthy organization like the Association for Crippled Children, to obtain funds for
their party purposes by exploiting the name of this charitable organization. I've checked with
the authorities and this act of this political party has caused this association untold damage be-
cause people are now afraid to support this organization because of the way their name was us-
ed for the last five years. For five years at least, tickets have been sold under the pretense of
supporting and supplying the proceeds to the Association for Retarded Children, and yet every
year only a very few dollars of the total receipts were ever sent to this organization. To prove
the point how badly the money was being handled, when this thing came to the attention of the
public by the news story that appeared in the Winnipeg Tribune on January 27, this organization
sent additional funds in the hopes that this organization would remain silent. Mr. Chairman,
this action is out.and out fraud. If any other.citizen attempted to use the name of an associa- -
tion to collect money and then use it for their own purposes, is tantamount to fraud and those
people that are connected with it should have been charged. I'd like the Minister when he re-
plies tonight to tell us why he didn't take any action in this matter. .

MR. HAWRYLUK: Mr. Chairman, I want to deviate a bit regarding the topics- that
have been talked about tonight. I just want to get information, = and I believel have
‘to speak on the administration of this department regarding the duties and function of the Liquor
.Control Commission. I believe that's under the Attorney-General. I can't find it anywhere else.
We are all fully aware of the work of the commission under Major-General Elliot Rogers,and
I'm just interested in how and when and why the number of liquor applicants or number of liquor
licenses that have been issued -- so many of them in the past number of years. It has been
brought to my attention by people who are in the business ~- who opened up the businesses a
few years ago with big investments, that the Liquor Commission Board is indiscriminately giv-
ing licenses right, left and forth to anyone who wishes a license. As a result, the Manitoba Ho-
tel Association has come out most forcibly in asking the government to do something about
breaking and stopping the amount of licenses that are issued, because they feel that they have
a big investment. ) :

- We also have heard of several well-known nightclubs in town who have lost their shirts in
trying to compete with the hundreds of outlets that are available -- hundreds of outlets in Great-
er Winnipeg. I'm just wondering how far this commission intends to go in protecting the invest-
ments made by the men who -have put up businesses for the purpose of getting some small re-
turn.

Now I was interested enough to get some information as to the comparisons of two well-
known provinces just to show you the difference between two provinces, and the commission in
one province issuing of licenses regarding all kinds of outlets. And the comparison is very ob-
. vious. Our neighbours to the left here which have a larger population, they have more hotels ==
but it's the hotels that have been in business for some time -- but here's the comparisons re-

garding the other outlets. You have here for example, in the Province of Manitoba, they have
37 dining room licenses -- there are none in Saskatchewan; there are 27 club cocktail outlets
. == 16 in Saskatchewan. The restaurants -- we have 116 of them in the Province of Manitoba

k ~ with liquor outlets; only three in Saskatchewan. Dining rooms -- we have 77 in this province;

25 in Saskatchewan. Cocktail lounges -- 54 in this province; 14 in Saskatchewan; and so on.

Now I think everyone is entitled to a fair return on their investment, and it's becoming a
pretty serious business in this town, the fact that people who have invested in restaurants and
cocktails and have been in business two or three years are finding things are pretty tough. Yet
from time to time we have more motels coming up; we have more hotel outlets; and, as a re-
sult, licenses are issued indiscriminately at the expense of those who have invested their money.

Now here is another interesting figure which I think should give the members of this com~-
mittee some idea as to comparisons of other provinces as to outlets. I have four major cities
in the western part of Canada, and here's the comparisons of licenses issued that is permitting
the sale of beer only to hotels and clubs in major cities of Western Canada, and this is very in-
teresting. In Vancouver, one per 8,100 people; in Edmonton, one per 7,000 people; in Regina,
one per 6,700 people; and in Manitoba or Winnipeg, one for every 3,800 people -- quite a

Page 1592 April 9th, 1962



(Mr. Hawryluk, cont'd.) .... comparison. In other words, the highest number of public beer
outlets per 1, 000 population in large cities of the four western provinces are found in Manitoba;
and the highest number of restaurant licenses are issued in this province; and the highest num-
ber of public cocktail lounges are in this province. I haven't got any axe to grind here because

I have no interest in any of these businesses at all, but I think it's a matter of considering the
investments of some of these people who have gone into the business and are entitled to a fair
share of the return; and yet we have these licenses issued, I think indiscriminately, to the vari-
ous outlets in the Province of Manitoba.

Here again is another heading which intrigued me very much, and I'm just wondering what
the commission is going to do about this. We have a brief here sent to the government to have
liquor served on Sunday from four to ten o'clock -- four to ten o'clock on Sunday. Who are go-
ing to reap the benefit? The restaurants at the expense of other outlets. I don't think there's
any need for that. I think there's enough drinking done during six days a week without having
licensed outlets on Sunday. That's my contention, and I think the contention of a lot of people,
and yet some consideration is possibly given that permission should be given to serve liquor on
Sunday. I can't see it and I don't think a lot of church-minded people want to see that happen in
the city. I can't see that at all and I think the commission should think twice before they allow
that to happen in our province.

I think the fact that we had a difficult task and time in allowing a certain amount of sports
on Sunday, which I felt was needed and I think a lot were even against that. I don't think we
want to go beyond that, because once you go beyond that, you'll be finding other interests allow-
ing night-clubbing on Sunday, certain hours after church, at seven o'clock to 12 o'clock and so
forth. I think this is a serious matter and I think some answer should be given to a problem
which is getting worse and worse as time goes by.

e MR. ROBLIN: I wonder, Mr. Chairman, if the committee would allow me to make a
statement about the business of the House for the rest of this week at this particular moment.
I realize it's an unwarranted interruption, but I hope I may be allowed to make it.

I'm hoping that the House will be able to rise at 11 o'clock tonight and I look for the co-
operation of the members in disposing of a reasonable amount of business before we reach that
hour. I'm also going to propose that the House will sit until midnight tomorrow, which is Tues-
day; then that we shall meet at 10:30 on Thursday morning and sit until one o'clock that forenoon.
The meeting on Thursday morning is to be a special or a separate sitting of the House and will
be devoted to government business, namely bills if there are any plus the Committee of Supply.
The House will rise at 11 o'clock Thursday night. The same procedure will be in effect for Fri-
day, sitting at 10:30 to one o'clock for a separate session which will consist of attention to gov-
ernment bills and to Committee of Supply, and then the regular proceedings in the afternoonand
rising at 11 o'clock on Friday. This program has been discussed between the three Party Lead-
ers and I understand that it is acceptable to members of the various caucuses. So if that is the
case, and I trust it is, I think that it may help us expedite our business without anyundue press-
ure on anyone's time or stamina. e e e

MR. GUTTORMSON: Mr. Chalrman, the members of this group are agreed to go along
with the proposition offered by the First Minister.

MR. CAMPBELL: Mr. Chairman, I suppose that there will be a motion put on the Order
Paper tomorrow in order to make it possible and within the rules for us to sit.

MR. ROBLIN: It's really anticipating from the result of my discussions that we would do
this by unanimous consent, Mr. Chairman. We could do it the other way it is true, but I was
given to understand, perhaps it wouldn't be necessary, and that next week we would review the
sitnation and see what we wanted to do on that occasio\g. It seems to me that if we could pro-
ceed by agreement, we'll all feel a lot happier about it.

MR. CAMPBELL: I have no objection to that, Mr. Chairman. As a matter of fact, if it's
done by consent, I'd even agree to sit on Saturday.

MR. PAULLEY: Mr. Chairman, I might say that as far as our group is concerned, this
proposition is quite satisfactory to us. I may also say, insofar as unanimous consent is con-
cerned, the Honourable Member for Rhineland has been consulted insofar as this arrangement
is concerned, he being the only one who isn't under a Whip although he is the Whip, has agreed,
as far as his caucus is concerned, with this arrangement for this week. So I don't think it
would really be necessary for a motion but it could be done by leave. I think everybody is
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(Mr. Paulle\y, cont'd.) .... agreed now.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Resolution No. 38 - pass?

MR. GUTTORMSON: Mr. Chairman, is the Minister not going to reply to some of the
points raised by members on this side?

MR. LYON: Mr. Chairman, I appreciate the Honourable Member from Kildonan passing
to me the papers with respect to the items that he raised concerning the alleged incident with
the constable and the man whom the constable alleged to be under the influence of liquor, and I
can assure him we will have this matter looked into along with the question of the accident of
the truck, with the information on which he gave .me. I rather enjoyed his quaint way of discus-
sing the reimbursement fund of the Law Society of Manitoba, and I hasten to assure him that it's
the hope of the profession and certainly of the Law Society that the public will of course have to
have recourse on a very infrequent basis to this fund, which I also hasten to point out to him is
supplied out of the pockets of the lawyers of this province to preserve the good name of their re-
putation and the integrity of their reputation among the public, notwithstanding the fact that one-. .
or two out of 600 or 700 practising lawyers may occasionally mix their funds with their clients'

" funds and sometimes get away with money that does not belong to.them. But certainly in a per-

iod -- andlet me say that this is and has been over the years a most commendable feature of

the operations of the Manitoba Law Society, and it's one that I'm sure the public are happy to )
see as being continued, and that they know that they will always have this protection from the re- !
imbursement fund that is made possible through the contributions of the praetising members.

He mentioned a word or two about free legal aid. I don'tknow if the honourable member
was in his seat on Friday night when I spoke about this question on the introduction of the esti-
mates. I thinkhe will realize that the clipping that he quoted from at that time is now some=
what out-of-date, in that according to the information provided to me by the Law Society -- and
this is a Law Society as opposed to a government scheme -- according to that information they
now have 90-odd lawyers, I believe it is, on their roster to do free indigent work in the crimin-
al field alone; and as the honourable member will appreciate from the reading of Hansard, this
service is now extended with the co-operation of this department and the financial assistance of
this department to all parts of Manitoba. I'm sure he will concur that this is a very desirable
action and one that the Soclety is to be commended for on behalf of the public of Manitoba.

He mentioned certain instructions that might be given to the police concerning The High-
way Traffic Act. I can assure himthat, I believe the bulk of the new personnel hired on munici-
pal police departments in Greater Winnipeg do take a course of instruction at the City of Winni-
peg Police Department School, and that school of course is one of the most extensive police
training schools operated in the Province of Manitoba. In fact, I think it is'the outstanding
course that is operated in Manitoba aside from any local training that may be givenbythe RCMP,
the bulk of their training taking place in Regina. Members of the department, the Deputy Attor- :
ney-General and sometimes Crown attorneys from the department, participate regularly in lec- |
ture series at the City of Winnipeg school for police. Insofar as the RCMP are qoncérned,
their basic training for all constables is undertaken at their Manning Depot at Regina, and they
receive an intensive course of training before they are ever allowed into the field, under what
I'm sure the honourable member would agree is one of the finest courses of tutelage that any
police department on this continent could hope to have. And so I find no great difference with
the honourable member on the question of instructions to police, because I believe that by and
large these instructions are being given, and sometimes that does not necessarily mean thatthe
instructions will always be carried out.

~ The point that I was making on Friday night was that the police are due, I think, for a
great deal of credit for the patience and the understanding and the unwillingness to react to very
severe provocation which they witness on very many occasions. It's always the cases -- the
cases the public hear about and the cases you and I hear about arethose where one policeman
has forgotten his training and forgotten his manners for the moment. We never hear about the
other tens of thousands -- and I use that figure advisedly -- the other tens of thousands of cases
that they handle annually in this province; their massive contacts with the public where there is
no cause for complaint at all; where the courtesy is shown as one would expect it. to be shown
" and everyting goes smoothly. It's always the bad case you hear of, and I'm not complaining
about that because I think the bad in itself serves as a spur to the other police departments and
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(Mr. Lyon, cont'd.) .... to all police departments in the province to maintain the high stand-
ards that they do have. But I do believe that if one were to figure out the proportion of publicity
that is received by one sour case as opposed to the tens of thousands of good cases, where no
one hears anytbing, one would agree with me that the record of the police in all facets of their
operations in Manitoba is one of which we can be proud. That does not mean to say that cases
will not occur where the police have made mistakes of judgment in dealing with people, and
those cases should be and are handled with a great deal of care. They are looked into and in-
vestigated by those having the authority over the police department in question, and that is only
as it should be, and that practice I believe should and will continue. But I do render that caveat
on behalf of the police departments of Manitoba because I feel that their total record should not
be besmirched by the odd case of negligence or the odd case of forgetfulness on the part of one
constable, which the news media and others may grab onto as being something typical of police
action. This is not typical of police action, as I am sure the honourable member is aware.

He has an interesting suggestion about damages up to $100 in impaired or drunk cases.
There is a provision in the Criminal Code where goods or materials can be refunded up to a
certain amount on the hearing of cases. .

He talks about the question of the Bar Association adjusting its fees. I'm sure the honour-
able member is aware that there is a tariff in effect with respect to the fees charged by barris-
ters and solicitors in Manitoba. If anybody feels that he has been unjustly dealt with in terms
of fees he is always free to make a complaint. Inthe case of a matter of fees that may be tax~
ed, he may make complaint to the court -- make application to the court to have his account tax-
ed or, in other circumstances, he may complain directly to the governing body -- to the Law
Society -~ who can intercede on his behalf and determine whether or not there has been any mis-
carriage of justice insofar as the charging of fees is concerned.

The Honourable Member for Inkster mentioned the large proportion of men that we have
at Headingley Gaol serving terms of seven days. This is very true and I certainly share with
him the hope that, as years go by and as new techniques of training and treatment come to hand,
that there may be some way of decreasing the numbers in our gaols. I am sure that the honour-
able member will realize as well that the seven day sentence, for instance in drunk-driving,
that's a mandatory sentence passed on by the Parliament of Canada, not by this Legislature;
and the court hearing such a charge, if the accused is found guilty, has no alternative but to
sentence the accused to seven days in gaol -- (Interjection) -~ Pardon?

MR. M. A. GRAY (Inkster): Do all of the drunk drivers get seven days?

MR. LYON: No. I just sayin those cases where a man is charged with and found guilty
of drunk driving, he gets seven days in gaol minimum -- that's the minimum sentence -- he
could get more. In other cases, where vagrants and so on are sent to gaol for periods of one,
two or three months, I'm sure the honourable member will appreciate that by and large this is
the last recourse of the courts. By and large the courts try to give these people a break unless
they're multi-repeaters, and if they are multi-repeaters, very often the vagrant type comes be-
fore the court, not looking for mercy but in many cases begging to be sent to gaol so that he'll
have a roof over his head through the cold winter months. Again, this is a hard fact of life,
but this has been going on for some considerable time.

The question of rehabilitation among this group is extremely difficult. Rehabilitating any
alcoholic is an extremely difficult program, and I can say to the honourable member that they
have operating in Headingley Gaol an Alcoholics Anonymous group. I was privileged to attend
their fall round-up last fall when over -- I would say between three and four hundred persons
attended the meeting which was addressed by an American speaker from that group. This
group included citizens of Winnipeg and of Manitoba who came in for this weekend round-up of
all AA's in Greater Winnipeg and in Manitoba, and they devoted part of their program to a
round-up meeting at Headingley Gaol. I must say, for one who has been to only a very few of
these meetings, that it was certainly a wonderful thing to see; to see the genuine interest taken
by a number ofthe inmates of Headingley Gaol who are beset with this tragic problem; to see
‘the work that they were able to do; and I suppose most importantly to see that this work was be-
ing done entirely by volunteers, by people who themselves were reconstructed alcoholics and
who were giving of their own time and of their own energy and in some cases of their own mon-
ey, to go out to Headingley on a regular basis to counsel and to give guidance to these people
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(Mr. Lyon, cont'd.) .... who are beset with this addiction. Certainly it was a tremendously
stimulating experience for me to see this wonderful operation going on within the walls of this
institution and to see the interest that had been engendered in this program. While very little
is said, while Alcoholics Anonymous are not a group that seek publicity, they are not a group
that seek financial assistance from governments; they are a group who like to carry on the work
that they do for the sake of helping their fellow man. I pause here tonight, Sir, to pay them due
tribute for the splendid program that they carry on within that institution, and it is throughsuch
programs I think inevitably that we will see the answer, if there is in fact an answer, to the
problem of alcohol addiction. ‘

The Honourable Member from Emerson I'm afraid didn't contribute too much of an origi-
nal nature to the debate. He talked of the situation where he ran into some undesignated person
who suggested that we should have drowned all of the girls at the Home for Girls and, like him,
I share the complete abhorrence for that type of suggestion that he does. But I say to the hon~
ourable member that that perhaps is a more significant remark than he perhaps realized be-
cause in a sense it bespeaks an attitude, not a widespread attitude -- no -- but it bespeaks an
attitude of some members of the public toward the whole correctional program. One of the
great deterrents to the development of corrections in Canada, as stated in the Fauteux Report
and I suppose as stated by anybody in the field, is the fact of public apathy; the fact that the pub-
lic just sometimes don't care about persons who are committed to juvenile or to adult instituti-
ons; and so in a very raw sense. he saw exhibited before him the type of attitude that those in
the correctional field, not too often, but occasionally do run into even in this day and age among
the public. That is why it is necessary to have understanding of what correction can do. It is
necessary to keep the public attuned; keep the rest of the province attuned to what one is trying
to do in the correctional field in order that there will be that large body of understanding and
that large body of support that is always necessary if a provincial, or any government prog-
ram, is tQ succeed. -

I say nothing more about the incident at the Manitoba Home for Girls. I explained general-
ly on Friday night the circumstances surrounding this incident. I have had the opportunity,
which I know the honourable members opposite have not had, of perusing the report into this
matter; and I can state categorically that from none of the reports that have come to-my atten-
tion, police reports investigating this unfortunate drowning, is there even a tittle of evidence to
suggest that there was irresponsibility on the part of any of the staff involved in this instance. -
It's one of those cases where, had the girls chosen to run toward the highway rather than to-
ward the river, there would have been no loss of life. They chose to run toward the river in-
stead of running in the opposite direction, and they tried to cross the river at a point where the
ice was rotten and the girls fell in. Now they were under supervision at the time. They skipp-
ed out. These were girls who had been given the privilege of having an evening recreation peri-
od on'the skating rink. The skating rink was surrounded, as I have mentioned, by a ......
wire fence, nine feet high, with protective inturning wire on the top of it. In all circumstances,
as I can see them, every precaution was taken by the staff to make sure that the girls stayed
there. They didn't. They got over the fence and they ran away. It's a most unfortunate thing
but certainly not one, from the reports that I have seen, where any tittle of negligence can be
attached to those who were in charge of the institution that night.

Now let me say this. You can have it the other way -- you can have it the other way if
you want. You can have them behind steel bars and you can have them locked up and never get
out and never get recreation. You can have the most secure institution in the world, if that's
what you want your correctional program to be among juveniles. If you want to stop them run-
ning, all you have to do is put them inside a fortress; lock the door and throw the key away.
Anybody can do that. It's been going on for centuries. But if you want to try to lay on a prog-
ram, and that's what we're trying to do at the Home for Girls, you've got to have a minimum
security atmosphere and that's what we have there. We have a large number of runaways from
that Home -- a large number of them -- but I say on balance, Mr. Chairman, that you've got
to choose between the type of program you want. We've made the choice for the minimum se-
curity type of program with the rehabilitative features that flow with that program, with coun-
selling, with the academic training, with the other types of training that go on there, and with
a certain amount of faith being placed in the girls. Very often it's not well placed -- not well
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(Mr. Lyon, cont'd.) .... placed -~ because a number of them run away. ButI can tell my hon-
ourable friend if he wants it the other way all we have to do is to put up a stone wall around it.
We won't have any people running away but we'll have that place filled all the time, and we'll

be adding on to it every year in order to accommodate those who keep repeating and come back,
and so I merely say to him that the choice is right there. We've made our choice. We've made
our choice to go with the minimum security institution and‘to try to lay on a program of correc- .
tion. Ifthat's the wrong choice I'd like to hear my honourable friend tell me.

Now the Honourable Member for St. George raised the question of the Wellington Progres—
sive Conservative organization, and I presume he got this from the newspaper. I wasn't
aware of the relevancy of this item to my department. He might have raised it under the De-
partment of Welfare or I don't know what other department he might have raised it under. I'm
not wholly familiar with the circumstances of that case at all, Mr. Chairman, because it was
not brought to my attention in my official capacity as Attorney-General. From what I do know
of it, I know that there was no complaint ever lodged with the police or by anybody so far as I
know on behalf of the organization that was concerned -- I believe it was the retarded children
-- with anybody at all. This was at most, from what I am told and I am only repeating hear-
say, at most from whatI am told, there was a misunderstanding that occurred not three or
four years ago but apparently only recently because the practice had been obtaining, soI am
told, with the consent, either implied or otherwise, of the organization for some number of
years past. The difference between the groups was ironed out and the misunderstanding, if in
fact it was that, was ironed out, and I know about as much about it, I suppose, as my honour-
able friend, from reading of the newspapers, but never to my knowledge by anyone other than
the Honourabe Member for St. George was it suggested that there was any criminal intent or
mens rea on the part of the people responsible for the tickets that were sold.

My honourable friend from Burrows raises the question about the Liquor Control Commis-
sion and its alleged indiscriminate licensing. Now I always enjoy my honourable friend from
Burrows when he speaks. He's one of the, Ithink one of the most interesting speakers in the
House. He speaks out and he speaks well, and he lets you know what he thinks; but I looked in
amazement when I heard my honourable friend speak tonight because it is the first time that I
have ever heard a socialist making a case on behalf of private monopoly. But be that as it may,
the point he raises is certainly one that has arisen from time to time in discussion. I can only
refer him to the last Annual Report of the Liquor Control Commission, and if he will look at
Schedule I on Page 11 of that report, he will see the actual number of new licenses that were
granted by the Liquor Control Commission in the fiscal year ending March 31, 1961. I will
just run down the new licenses because they have them classified in that category. There were
four new hotel registrations; twonew beer parlourlicenses; 22 restaurant beer and wine licenses;

21 beverage room licenses -- and the honourable member will appreciate that the beverage

room license is a supplementary license to the restaurant beer and wine; there were nine din-
ing room licenses -- new ones; four cocktail rooms; one cabaret; two club dining rooms; two
club cocktail rooms; four military canteens; five beer vendors; one brewer's retail; and one dis-
tiller, Now that is a complete run-down of all of the new licenses. I would also bring to my
honourable friend's attention this fact -- it's referred to on page seven of that report, again

for the fiscal year '61 ~- during the year, 13 municipalities voted on by-laws to permit the issu-
ing of the new types of licenses. These were areas that formerly were not permitted to have

the new licenses. In all but two municipalities the electorates voted in favour of these by-laws,
so you have 11 new areas, which formerly did not qualify for new licenses, passing referenda
and thus becoming available and, undoubtedly in many cases, although I haven't the material
here to document it, I am sure that these votes, these successful votes were then followed up

by applications on behalf of persons wanting restaurant, beer andwine or abeverage room license.

I would also point out to my honourable friend that the number of beverage room licenses
is increasing and hence the number of beer and wine licenses, because this beer and wine res-
taurant license is a prerequisite for the beverage room, to an extent because of the conversion
process which the commission is recommending to the different outlets in Manitoba. In other
words, there is a fair amount of conversion from existing beer licenses to restaurant, beer
and wine and beverage room licenses. In some cases the beer parlour license is continuing
and the two new licenses are being added on to hotel premises, but you can see from these
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(Mr. Lyon, cont'd.) .... figures that the n’censing in 1961, I don't think on the basis- of those i
facts, could be called indiscriminate. - .
Now he makes comparisons with other provinces to the west, and.I thmk these compari—
sons would be valid if one did not realize that the licensing in Western Canada, with the except-
ion of British Columbia, the forms of licensing are comparatively new. They are in about the
. same position vis-a-vis licensing as Manitoba was in 1957 ~- the Act, you remember, came in- .
. to force in 1956 -- and they're just now in the throes of adjusting themselves to the new licens- .
ing procedures. That is why perhaps, although I didn't mark all of the figures down, that is why-
perhaps those figures or those comparison figures would not be quite so valid when one: consid-
ers the legislative background and the comparative novelty of this type of 11censing, particularly

~ in Saskatchewan and Alberta.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Resolution 38 -- . . : }

MR. M. N. HRYHORCZUK, Q.C. (Ethelbert Plains): Mr. Chairman, after listening to .
the honourable the Minister answering the question or the statement made by the Honourable
Member for Emerson, I come to the conclusion that probably my treatment of the subject rec
ceived the same tender consideration when he answered in my absence Friday night. Idon't
think that the Honourable Member from Emerson nor I, nor any member of this House wishes
to return to a maximum security prison for any of our inmates: I think insofar as the minimum
security institution is concerned, it is the rightidea and it is in the right direction, but the Min-
ister is.very adept at putting up a smokescreen by brlnging out matters that are not pertinent to .
the question at all. The fact of the matter is that there was one girl that lost her life; another
one would have if it wasn't for the courage of one of the staff; and not only that, but it was a
third girl that let the staff know that these two girls were in that plight that they were in. Cer-
tainly minimum security institution doesn't mean to say that there's to be no supervision. These

_ girls were escaping at the time, and it's only common sense, Mr. Chairman, that in this recre-
ation yard or on the skating rink, there should have been one of the staff there; and had there
been one of the staff there, this tragedy would have never occurred. No matter how much mean-
dering the Minister does, the fact remains that he is directly responsible for the loss of that
life and I don't think that he should take that charge so lightly and then come back with a lot of
invectives and statements that are beside the point altogether. I hope that he takes these charges
seriously and does everything he can that they don't occur again in the future.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Resolution 38 -~ passed. Resolution 39 (2) Land Titles Offices —
passed. Resolution 40 (3) Law Courts --

MR. GUTTORMSON: Mr. Chairman, what steps is the Minister taking in connection

" with the court reporters over at the Law Courts. There is a drastic shortage over there at the
present time as he well knows and, as a result of the shortage of court reporters, a lot of cases
are being held up because the transcript of evidence just can't be prepared in time for the
judges to go over them. There's another serious possibility that unless some adjustment is
made in the salaries being paid to these court reporters that they presently have on staff, that
many of them are going to depart for greener fields. It is my understanding that the court re-
porters at the present time are paid a salary of $395 a month. Their counterparts in Ontario,
I'm told, are receiving in the neighbourhood of $8, 000 a year. It's true thatthe local court-re~
porters are making more money than the salary paid, but this money is made during their own .
time in the evenings, on Saturdays and Sundays, and unless something seriously is done in a
hurry, the department is going to be in a serious jackpot over court reporters.

MR. LYON: Mr. Chairman, onthat point, I can tell my honourable friend that we're
approximately a year and a half ahead of bis suggestion in that, I believe when Mr. R. G. B
Dickson, Q.C., was the Chairman of the Civil Service Commission, we had a special survey
instituted into the court reporters' salary situation; and unless I'm mistaken, I believe that his
recommendations at that time, ‘and that was a year and a half or two years ago, were imple~
mented. The salary range that my honourable friend speaks of is approximately true, but. -~
what he fails to give proper accentuation to is the fact that the court reporters do sometimes
double and sometimes triple their -- (Interjection) == Yes, I know. My honourable friend men-~
tioned that, but they do that -- not after hours -- they do that in examinations for discovery and
so on during regular business hours and nobody is complaining about this at all because this is
part and parcel of the whole procedure. You must have an examination for discovery if you're
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(Mr. Lyon, cont'd.) .... going to bring a civil action on to trial. I can tell him that there are
in the estimates this year provisions for two new Court Reporters 1I in each judicial district;
one new Court Reporter II for The Pas; and in addition, of course, there is a new secretary to
the judges being added to the staff over there to facilitate just the very problem that he speaks of.

Now putting the two court reporters in the estimates is one thing; getting the two court re-
porters is another thing, as my honourable friend well knows. The situation, for instance at
the City of Winnipeg, is perhaps indicative of some of the problems that have been faced, al-
though fortunately not to date faced by the provincial civil service because we still get enquiries
from court reporters in other jurisdictions, some of whom wish to come here, and we've been
fortunate enough, in the case of two or three that I can think of over the past two years, to bring
j:hem from other jurisdictions to Manitoba. Thus while we have these two new reporters in and
are hopeful that we can fill the positions soon, the situation that he speaks of is quite a valid
one. We want to get as many court reporters on the staff as we can. I can assure him that the
situation in Manitoba vis-a-vis court reporters is not a unique situation, and in many ways is a
much better situation than in other provincial jurisdictions that we hear about from time to
time, so while it's far from being perfect and while we are adding new staff, still I think that
the situation is reasonably well in hand if we can get the men that we are seeking.

MR. HILLHOUSE: Mr. Speaker, I think perhaps one thing that could be done to assist the
court reporters in their work would be if typists were supplied, because I know from my own
experience that the boys who take the proceedings at a trial, they all have their dictaphones
there and they can give the evidence into the dictaphone; and if they had a typist there to type it
over, all they'd have to do is to check it afterwards and certify it. I'd like to know though from
the Attorney-General whether in Ontario the court reporters there also receive any money that
they make in respect to examinations for discovery.

MR. LYON: I really couldn't answer my honourable friend. I can just add this word, that
the situation regarding stenographers was tried for some time and it did not work out to the
satisfaction of the court reporters themselves. Some of them still do utilize court reporters --
or stenographers I should say -- whose services they obtain on their own but those positions
which werein the estimates for a number of years were finally struck out, I believe, last year,
because they were just not filled and there was no particular interest, as I was led to believe,
by the court reporters in having them filled. Another field that hasn't been mentioned but to
which we are giving attention is the question of stenotyping, the new little manual machine, and
if the Honourable the Minister of Education fulfills the plans that he has, I'm hopeful that there
will be a course in stenotyping offered at the new Technical Institute because, at the present
time, I believe Minneapolis is the closest place at which this course can be obtained. With his
usual Dauphin-like co-operation, I'm sure that he will endeavour to have this course included at
the Technical Institute so we can train more stenotype operators right in Manitoba.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Resolution 41, Legislative Counsel - passed?

MR. HILLHOUSE: Mr. Chairman, -- oh, I'm sorry.

MR. PAULLEY: On 41, Mr. Chairman, I'd like to make a remark or two. I understand
that our present Legislative Counsel, Mr. Rutherford, will be taking a retirement this year in
his official capacity, as I understand it, this Legislative Counsel. And I would like to pay a
tribute if this is so, and I understand that it is so, and I would like to pay a tribute to Mr. Ruth-
erford for the invaluable service that he has rendered to those in my group. I understand that
Mr. Rutherford has been the Legislative Counsel since the year 1941, which as every member
knows, was prior to myself coming into this House. I want to say though, Mr, Chairman, how
much since I joined the House that I have appreciated the valuable guidance and service that I
have received from Mr. Rutherford. I don't think there is an individual with whom we come in
contact who has a better personality and a willingness than Mr. Rutherford. He has rendsred,
in my opinion, invaluable service, and I could not allow this item to pass at this time if I did
not pay a tribute and say through the media of this committee my personal thanks and, I'm sure,
the thanks of all members of the House to Mr. Rutherford for the services that he has rendered
in his official capacity. Now I hope -- I notice that there are items here for revision of statutes
and the likes of that, I feel sure that the government will still make use of the invaluable ser-
vices of Mr. Rutherford. Ihad an opportunity of speaking with some of the chaps in other juris-
dictions who hold a similar position as Mr. Rutherford and they spoke very, very highly also of
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(Mr. Paulley, cont'd.) .... him. So I'trustthat in his leaving us officially as our Legislative
Counsel that his services will still be utilized by the government, and that his capabilities and
his qualities will not be lost to us altogether.

MR. HRYHORCZUK: Mr. Chairman, I'd like to join with the Honourable the Leader of
the NDP Party in his commendation of the work that has been done by Mr. Rutherford in the
Province of Manitoba. I had occasion to travel with him to other parts of the country and he is,
and was, and I guess always will be regarded as one of the best menin the field. I agree whole-
heartedly with'what has just been said insofar as Mr. Rutherford's services to the province are
concerned, and I want to join with the Honourable Leader of the NDP Party in suggesting that
Mr. Rutherford's services be retained into the future as long as possible; as long as he is will-
ing to work for the government in any capacity whatsoever, and I hope that it will be in this par-
ticular capacity in which he is so adept and so conscientious. I really think that that is one of
the.~~ we have many men in the service of this province. that are dedicated, but I think that Mr.
Rutherford is among the foremost, and one who should be remembered and one who should un-

" derstand that we appreciate everything he has done for the government and for the Province of
Manitoba as a whole. )

MR. CAMPBELL: Mr. Chairman, ...... until I heard it mentioned in the course of this
discussion that Mr. Rutherford was retiring. Isthatthe ...... —-

MR. LYON- I'was going to-add a "maybe' to these remarks, but the commendations. are
due in any case.

MR. CAMPBELL: Whether it's a fact or not, I would like to say that I certainly join most
wholeheartedly with the expressions of appreciation of Gerry Rutherford. He's one of the sen-
ior civil servants in this area that a great many of us consider as a personal friend in addition
to being a valued servant of the Crown. Quite a few of the members have spoken about the fact
of his long tenure of office in this position. It's maybe not so generally known that he was with
the Civil Service quite a few years before that. He was, if I remember correctly, our original
Debt Adjustment Commissioner in Manitoba and there, too, he did a magnificent job in some-
thing that was far from easy, as I think that's a pretty controversial kind of a place to be push-
ed into especially with a completely new Act, in difficult times, when he had to sort of make
his own way without any landmarks to guide him at all.

Speaking of him as a Legislative Counsel, I think probably the best evidence that you can
give of his capacity is to just check up through the years and see how few of Mr. Rutherford's
statutes have ever been called into question by the courts. I used to tease Mr. Rutherford a bit
by saying that he certainly used quite a few words to express some of these ideas, but I'll tell
you when it came to the courts interpreting them, there weren't very many that were found want-
ing. He's an exceedingly capable man and one who under a modest exterior certamly has done
a very great job for the Province of Manitoba.

Might I ask the Attorney-General at this time, is it proposed to have a general revision of
the statutes fairly soon?

MR. LYON: Mr. Chairman, I didn't wish to interrupt the honourable members opposne
because all of the statements that they have made with respect to the Legislative Counsel are

. certainly well deserved by him, and I was not going to cloud the atmosphere by saying that there
was even a "maybe' in front of this situation. One fast learns in government there are no sec-
rets in government. It is true that there have been discussions -- may I say initiated by the per-
son in question and not by the government -- with respect to the possibility of his perhaps leav-
ing the formal responsibilities of Legislative Counsel but assuming in turn the full responsibil-
ity for the revision of statutes, so even if this comes about -~ and this is at the discussion
stage at his initiation -~ even if this comes about he will still be around in an advisory capacity
and doing, we hope, the big job of revision for which an item is provided in the estimates this
year. But it is slightly premature at this stage. I couldn't even set a date because this will de-.
pend largely on the gentleman in question, and as to his own feeling. He has been heard to say
that he thinks he's getting a little older. Well I've been heard to say that this fact, ifitisa
fact, is not manifested in his work and it depends on how or what attitude he takes with respect
to carrying on or whether he wishes to take on the still onerous job of revision of statutes in
place of the duty that he presently holds. The estimates do contain items for the revision of
statutes.  The preliminary work has already been started. There was some money set aside in
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(Mr. Lyon, cont'd.) .... last year's estimates. I don't believe much of it has been used but
preliminary work has started on a revision of statutes. The tentative target date would, of
course, be 1964, being ten years beyond the last revision of '54. I don't know if this govern-
ment will be any more successful than its predecessors in meeting that target date, but we'll
try it. -- (Interjection) -- Well, that's a novel suggestion, too, but that's one that I'd be will-
ing to take bets on as opposed to the one about the retirement of the -- (Interjection) But I'm
sure that the revision -- as I say, we will aim for a target date of '64. Whether or not we'll
hit it, I don't know. But in any case, I'll be quite happy when the revised statutes come out to
pass them around as Attorney-General to all members of the House.

MR. CAMPBELL: Mr. Chairman, seeing that several others have made some remarks
concerning the fine job that Mr. Rutherford has done in this position, it's probably just as well
that this discussion took place. But I would suggest to the Honourable the Attorney-General
that after this, if he has any public policy to announce, that he does it himself instead of getting’
the Leader of the New Democratic Party to do it.

i MR. HILLHOUSE: ' Mr. Chairman, I would like to add my remarks of commendation in
respect to Mr. Rutherford, and I do hope that the Honourable the Attorney-General will in-
duce Mr. Rutherford to stay in the service of the province for many years to come.

Regarding the revision of statutes, I wonder if the government has considered the advisa-
bility of introducing a looseleaf system of statutes in Manitoba. Most law book companies now
that publish legal periodicals, they do have that looseleaf system and you get your amendments
through the mail; you just substitute pages. It seems to me that we could introduce that system
in Manitoba in connection with our statutes and it would do away with these revisions that take
place every ten years or so. Your statutes would be kept up to date. So I would ask the Honour-
able the Attorney-General to consider that matter. It's true that it would be a little more cost-
ly in the initial stages, but speaking as a member of the legal profession who gets these statutes
free as long as he sits in this House, I don't think the legal profession would object to the addi-
tional cost, because the additional convenience would more than offset the additional cost. And
I would ask him to take that matter under advisement.

MR. MOLGAT: ...... of my colleague. I think that the original additional cost might al-
so be offset in the work involved in revising constantly. Someone who wants to keep his set of
statutes up-to-date if he's in the legal profession has to employ staff to do it. Insofar as the
members of the House, we have to be constantly making notations -- or usually what we end up
by doing is borrowing the ones that belong here, and ours don't end up by being up-to-date.
This would obviate all this because at the end of every session any revised statutes would simp-
ly be sent out and be kept up-to-date very easily.

MR. LYON: ...... my honourable friend that that question has been looked at. I'm not
in a position to announce any definite policy one way or the other but certainly it has been look-
ed at and will not be overlooked when the preparation is under way.

MR. CHAIRMAN: 41, passed. Committee rise and report. Call in the Speaker. Mr.
Speaker, the Committee of Supply has adopted certain resolutions and directed me to report the
same and asks leave to sit again.

. MR. MARTIN: Mr. Speaker, I beg to move, seconded by the Honourable Member for
Springfield that the report of the committee be received.

Mr. Speaker presented the motion and after a voice vote declared the motion carried.

MR. EVANS: Mr. Speaker, Ibegto move, seconded by the Honourable the Attorney-
General, that the House do now adjourn and stand adjourned until 2:30 tomorrow afternoon.

Mr. Speaker presented the motion and after a voice vote declared the motion carried and
the House adjourned until 2:30 Tuesday afternoon.
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